
 

Historic 
Commission 

Mukilteo City Hall  
Council Chambers 
11930 Cyrus Way  

June 23, 2022 
6:30 pm 

 

If Participating Virtually by Zoom:    
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86298801510?pwd=ejR6N0V5RW1DelFZMmZ2VDM1Wjc5dz
09 
 
By Phone: 
1-253-215-8782 

Meeting ID: 862 9880 1510 

Passcode: 236124 

 

CALL TO ORDER - 6:30 PM 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AGENDA ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 May 26, 2022 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MEETING ITEMS 

 May 26, 2022 Follow Up 

o Prior Historic Commission By Laws and Rules of Procedure  

 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Complete packets are available at City Hall, 11930 Cyrus Way, Mukilteo, WA  98275 

If you have a disability, which may limit your participation, please contact the City Clerk's office at 

425.263.8005 at least two (2) business days in advance of the meeting so that we can arrange a 

reasonable accommodation for you. 

001

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86298801510?pwd=ejR6N0V5RW1DelFZMmZ2VDM1Wjc5dz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86298801510?pwd=ejR6N0V5RW1DelFZMmZ2VDM1Wjc5dz09


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

May 26, 2022

002



 
CITY OF MUKILTEO, WASHINGTON 

Historical Preservation Commission Minutes 
 May 26, 2022 

6:30 PM 
Virtual Meeting Via Zoom 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Called the meeting to order at 6:33 PM.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Commissioners:  
Chair Carlson, Vice-Chair Northfield, Commissioners Archipley, Fisher, Kirk, and Ripley arrived at 7:16 PM.  
Absent: Commissioner Allen (excused). 
City Staff: 
Community Development Director Osaki and Permit Services Assistant Martinis. 
Council Liaison: 
Councilmember Emery 
 

AGENDA ORDER No changes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES MOTION: To approve the minutes of April 28, 2022 

MADE BY: Vice-Chair Northfield 
SECONDED: Commissioner Kirk 
ACTION: PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 5-0 

 
  

PUBLIC COMMENTS None. 
 
MEETING ITEMS 

 

 Michelle Thompson, Washington State Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) 
 
Michelle Thompson from (DAHP) presented an overview of her agency and information associated with the City of 
Mukilteo being a part of the Certified Local Government (CLG) program.  There are sixty (60) CLG’s in the State. This 
allows the City of Mukilteo to apply for CLG grants.   
 
The Commission asked an array of questions.  Thompson responded, and made very clear DAHP is there to help 
facilitate in the historic preservation process.   
 
The Commission expressed a desire to move forward for CLG funding in the next cycle, one year from April would 
be the due date, and welcomed DAHP staff to attend a future meeting. 
 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

1. Staff Announcements/Information 
None. 
 

003



 
ADJOURNMENT MOTION: To adjourn the meeting at 8:04 PM 

MADE BY: Vice Chairperson Northfield 
SECONDED: Commissioner Archipley 
ACTION: PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0 

 
NEXT MEETING To be determined. 
 
 
These minutes are excerpts from the Historic Preservation Commission meeting. An audio recording of the meeting 
was made. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
  DRAFT 
____________________________________ 
Cheryl Martinis, Permit Services Assistant 

 

004



1 

 

MUKILTEO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT 

SUBJECT TITLE:   Follow up to May 
26, 2022 Historic Commission Meeting 

FOR AGENDA OF:   
June 23, 2022 

Department Director: 
David Osaki, Director of Community 
Development 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Prior Historic Commission By-Laws 
and Rules of Procedure 

2. Current Historic Commission By-Laws 
(approved April 2022) 

3. Example Real Estate Sheet (from 
DAHP) 

Contact Staff: 

David Osaki, Director of Community 
Development 
  

 

BACKGROUND 

At the Historic Commission’s (“Commission”) May 26, 2022 meeting, Michelle 

Thompson with the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic 

Preservation (DAHP) attended and provided information.    Ms. Thompson works with 

local governments on historic preservation issues through, among other items, her 

involvement in the Washington State Main Street Program.  

 

Ms. Thompson’s discussion covered a range of items including funding, historic 

designations (at different levels of government), the certified local government program 

and grant funding. 

 

It is possible that Ms. Thompson may attend the Historic Commission’s July meeting, to 

include a site visit to Hawthorne Hall. 

 

In the meantime, Ms. Thompson provided follow up information. This includes by-laws 

(Exhibit 1) which were used by the prior City of Mukilteo Historic Commission before 

it discontinued meeting.   (The by-law materials she provided were scanned, so they may 

be difficult to read). 

 

What is especially helpful is that attached to these previous by-laws in Exhibit 1 are a 

series of procedures including; 

 

Section A 

Mukilteo Historic Commission Rules and Procedures for National Register of 

Historic Places Review 

 

 

005



2 

 

Section B 

Mukilteo Historic Commission Rules and Procedures for Mukilteo Register of 

Historic Places Designation Review 

 

Section C  

Mukilteo Historic Commission Rules and Procedures for Design Review 

 

Section D  

Mukilteo Historic Commission Special Valuation Review Procedures 

 

Section E  

Mukilteo Historic Commission Rules and Procedures for Impact Review 

 

Mukilteo Municipal Code (MMC) section 2.52.040(D)(18), under the broader heading of 

“Mukilteo historic commission”, is entitled “Power and Duties” and states, 

 

“18.    The commission shall adopt rules of procedure to address items 3, 4, 6 and 

18 inclusive.” 

MMC section 2.52.040 (D) 3, 4 and 6 (referenced above) each has a provision for the 

adoption of standards to guide that responsibility as follows, 

 

“3.    Review nominations to the Mukilteo register of historic places according to 

criteria in Section 2.52.050 and adopt standards in its rules to be used to 

guide this review. 

4.    Review proposals to construct, change, alter, modify, remodel, move, 

demolish, and significantly affect properties or districts on the register as 

provided in Section 2.52.050; and adopt standards in its rules to be used to 

guide this review and the issuance of a certificate of appropriateness or 

waiver. 

6.    Conduct all commission meetings in compliance with RCW Chapter 42.30, 

Open Public Meeting Act, to provide for adequate public participation and 

adopt standards in its rules to guide this action.” 

Section C and Section D to the Historic Commission’s prior by-laws address items 3 and 

4 above, and may still be applicable to meet the requirement in 3 and 4 above. 

 

006

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Mukilteo/#!/Mukilteo02/Mukilteo0252.html#2.52.050
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Mukilteo/#!/Mukilteo02/Mukilteo0252.html#2.52.050
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=42.30


3 

 

Ms. Thompson also discussed financial incentives for historic buildings at the May 26, 

2022 Historic Commission meeting.  As follow up to that, she provided an example of a 

real estate sheet (Exhibit 3) where the building was marketed towards developers who 

would want to take advantage of the financial incentives available for a building on the 

national (federal historic tax credits) and local registers (special tax valuation).   

According to Ms. Thompson, the building is now a boutique hotel. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Historic Commission to be briefed on rules of procedures developed by prior Historic 
Commission. 
 

ALTERNATIVES 

N/A 

007



008



009



010



011



012



013



014



015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



1 

CITY OF MUKILTEO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION BYLAWS 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE 

Section 1. The duties of the Mukilteo Historic Preservation Commission 

(Commission) of the City of Mukilteo are those set forth in Chapter 2.52 

of the Mukilteo Municipal Code (MMC). 

ARTICLE II 

MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1. Members of the Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor and 

confirmed by the City Council.  Per MMC Section 2.52.040, the 

Commission shall consist of seven (7) members, of which two shall be 

professionals who have experience in identifying, evaluating, and 

protecting historic resources and are selected from among the disciplines 

of history, architecture, historic preservation, planning, law, and real 

estate. 

Section 2. Members may be removed from the Commission by the Mayor, with the 

approval of the City Council, for inefficiency, neglect of duty or 

malfeasance. 

Section 3. The Mayor may be requested by a majority vote of the Commission to 

remove or ask to resign a member from the Commission as provided for 

in Article 2, Section 2 above, or if the member has three (3) unexcused 

consecutive absences from regular meetings or unexcused absences of 

more than 50% of the meetings (regular and special) held in a calendar 

year.  If a member notifies the Community Development Department at 

City Hall at the earliest possible opportunity, and in any event prior to 

4:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting, then the absence shall be 

considered excused. 

ARTICLE III 

OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 

Section 1. The officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair and Vice-Chair.  

The City shall make the Recording Secretary available. 

Section 2. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Commission and shall have 

the duties normally conferred by the parliamentary usage on such officers. 

Section 3. The Chair shall be one of the appointed members of the Commission.  The 

Chair shall have the privilege of discussing all matters before the 

Commission and of voting thereon.  The Chair shall preside at all 

EXHIBIT 2

064



 

2 

 

meetings of the Commission; call special meetings of the Commission in 

accordance with the bylaws; sign documents of the Commission; and see 

that all actions of the Commission are properly taken and recorded. 

 

Section 4. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall serve as presiding officer 

as described in Article 3, Section 3.  The Vice-Chair shall be an appointed 

member of the Commission.  During the absence, disability, or 

disqualification of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall exercise or perform all 

the duties and be subject to all the responsibilities of the Chair.  In the 

absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair, if a quorum is present, the 

membership of the Commission in attendance shall select a member to 

preside as Chair pro-tem for that meeting only. 

 

Section 5. A Recording Secretary shall be responsible for keeping the minutes as 

well as provide notice of meetings to the Commission members and 

arrange proper and legal notice of meetings and hearings.  The Recording 

Secretary shall also attend to correspondence of the Commission and such 

other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Commission 

or the Community Development Director. 

 

Section 6. The Community Development Department retains the records of the 

Commission.  The Community Development Department prepares the 

agenda of regular and special meetings and provides technical support 

and other duties as may be prescribed. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

Section 1. Nomination and election of officers shall be conducted shall be the first 

meeting of each calendar year. 

 

Section 2. A candidate receiving a majority vote of the entire membership of the 

Commission shall be declared elected and shall serve for one year or until 

the successor shall take office. 

 

Section 3. No member may serve more than two (2) consecutive one (1) year terms 

as Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall succeed the Chair if the office is vacated 

before the term is completed and shall serve the unexpired term of the 

vacated office.  A new Vice-Chair shall be elected at the next regular 

meeting.  A Vice-Chair succeeding a Chair to fill an unexpired partial 

term may serve as Chair for the next two consecutive full one-(1) year 

terms.  

 

 

 

 

065



 

3 

 

ARTICLE V 

MEETINGS 

Section 1. The Commission shall schedule a regular meeting every month or as 

needed in the designated meeting area as advertised, providing that 

regularly scheduled meetings may be canceled if there is no business 

pending, subject to the approval of the Chair. The Public shall be notified 

accordingly. The Commission may also hold workshops or study sessions 

in place of, or in addition to, regularly scheduled meetings. 

 

Section 2. A majority of the membership of the Commission shall constitute a 

quorum.  Except for the election of officers (see Article IV, Section 2) and 

amendments to bylaws (see Article XII), the number of votes necessary 

to transact business shall be a majority of the quorum of the Commission.   

 

 Voting shall be by roll call in cases where it is deemed necessary to ensure 

an accurate count of the vote.  A record of the votes shall be kept as part 

of the minutes.   

 

Section 3.  Each member of the Commission who has knowledge of the fact that they 

will not be able to attend a scheduled meeting of the Commission, shall 

notify the Community Development Department at City Hall at the 

earliest possible opportunity, and in any event, prior to 4:00 p.m. on the 

date of the meeting.  The Community Development Department shall 

notify the Commission in the event that there will not be a quorum.  

 

Section 4. The Chair may call special meetings.  It shall be the duty of the Chair to 

call such a meeting when requested to do so by a majority of the members 

of the Commission.  The notice of such a meeting shall specify the 

purpose of the meeting and no other business will be considered.  The 

Secretary shall notify all Commission members of the meeting at least 

forty-eight (48) hours in advance of such special meeting. 

 

Section 5. All meetings, including workshops and special meetings, shall be open to 

the general public. The exception shall be for executive sessions as 

authorized by law.  

 

Section 6. Meetings shall be noticed as required by the Open Public Meetings Act 

(RCW Chapter 42.30).  Public hearings shall be noticed in accordance 

with applicable City and State statute public hearing notice 

requirements.  

 

ARTICLE VI 

AGENDA AND MINUTES 

 

Section 1.   Except as provided in Article VI, Section 2, the Commission Agenda 

shall follow the established meeting format 

066



 

4 

 

 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Agenda Order 
Approval of Minutes 
Public Hearings (if any)  
Public Comment 

Meeting Items 

Commission Reports 

Adjournment 

   

Except as provided in Article VI, Section 2, minutes shall be recorded for 

all meetings and public hearings held by the Commission.   

 

Section 2.  The Agenda shall follow the established meeting format above and the 

meeting minutes shall be prepared for meetings, with the following 

exceptions:  
 

 

(a)  The Agenda Order may be rearranged by the Chair for 

individual items if necessary for the expeditious conduct of 

business,  

(b)  No minutes shall be recorded for Commission workshops 

unless requested to do so by the Chair or a majority of 

Commission members present,  

(c)  No minutes shall be approved at Workshops, and  

(d)  Public Hearings shall follow the format described in Article X, 

Section 3.  

 

Section 3.  The Commission invites citizen participation regarding the affairs of the 

City.   Any citizen who wishes to speak on a matter not scheduled on the 

agenda may do so when the Chair calls for Public Comment, for a 

maximum of three (3) minutes, unless the maximum time is modified by 

a vote of the Commission. 

 

Section 4. Generally, no remaining agenda items shall be taken up after 8:30 p.m.  

This shall be at the discretion of the Chair who shall also consider Public 

Hearing requirements associated with public notices and any other 

hearing deadlines in making any decision.   

 

ARTICLE VII 

WORK PLAN 

Section 1. A work plan for the calendar year shall be prepared and presented by the  

Community Development Department to the Commission at the annual 

organization meeting, which shall be the first meeting of each calendar 

year.  The work plan shall, at a minimum, include a tentative schedule of 

067



 

5 

 

meetings and topics for the calendar year.  The  Commission shall discuss 

the proposed work plan and members may suggest adding and/or deleting 

items from the work plan. 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

AGENDA PACKET DELIVERY 

 

Section 1.  Completed packets shall be transmitted by email or surface mail one (1) 

week preceding the day of a regular meeting, but not less than twenty-four 

(24) hours prior to a special meeting. 

 

 

ARTICLE IX 

COMMITTEES  

 

Section 1. Special committees may be appointed by the Chair for purposes and terms 

that the Commission approves. 

 

 

ARTICLE X 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

Section 1.  In addition to those required by law, the Commission may, at its 

discretion, hold public hearings when it decides that such hearings will 

be in the interest of the public. 

 

Section 2.  Notice of all public hearings shall be as required by Mukilteo Municipal 

Code and State Statute. 

 

Section 3. The following procedures will normally be observed for public hearings; 

 

1. Chair opens hearing. 

2. The staff presents the staff report and, if applicable, makes a 

recommendation. 

3. The Commission may ask questions regarding the staff presentation 

and report. 

4. The Chair calls for comments/presentations from the public. 

5. The Chair may allow further testimony. 

6. Chair closes public input to the hearing. 

7. Commission asks any questions it may have of the proponents, 

opponents, or staff and will then deliberate the issue(s). 

8. Commission takes a vote for approval, denial, or continuance. 

 

Section 4.  Public hearing testimony shall be limited to five (5) minutes per person, 

unless modified by a vote of the Commission. 

068



 

6 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XI 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

Section 1.  Conflict of Interest:  Whenever any member of the Historic Preservation 

Commission has a conflict of interest with respect to any matter on a 

Commission agenda, the member shall voluntarily excuse themselves 

from further participation in the discussion and consideration of the matter 

and shall vacate their seat and leave the Commission chambers until all 

proceedings with respect to the matter at that meeting are concluded.   

 

 The member shall further refrain from discussing the matter with any 

other Commissioner, or from attempting to influence any other 

Commissioner with respect to the matter, outside the meeting.  For 

purposes of this Section, conflict of interest is defined as a situation in 

which a reasonable person would conclude that the member’s independent 

judgement would be impaired by the member’s direct or indirect financial 

or other interest in the matter. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

AMENDMENTS 

 

Section 1.  The bylaws may be amended at any meeting of the Commission by a 

favorable vote of not less than five (5) of the seven (7) Commission 

members, provided that notice of said proposed amendment is given to 

each member in writing at least two (2) weeks prior to said meeting. 

 

 

APPROVED this 28th day of April 2022. 

 

 

 

/s/ Dode Carlson 

     

Chair 

City of Mukilteo Historic Preservation Commission 

069



110 S. Madison St.

Brokerage - Development - Property Management	 www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com

Spokane, WA

FOR SALE -  $1,000,000

Former “Downtown Otis Hotel” 
Fantastic location! The subject property is located in Downtown 
Spokane on Madison and 1st Ave. Property would make an ideal 
low-income housing project with many other city and government 
grants and tax credits. Great Low-Income Housing Project.

Kevin Edwards	
Office: 509-838-8500 
Cell: 509-939-8828  
Email: k.edwards@me.com 

Downtown Spokane 
Re-Development 

Project

EXHIBIT 3

070

http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com
mailto:k.edwards@me.com?subject=
http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com
mailto:k.edwards@me.com?subject=


Integrity - Creativity - Stability	 	 	 	 	 	 	                                     tel: 509-939-8828  |  dick.edwards@me.com  |  k.edwards@me.com

PROPERTY INFO   	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	                          Kevin Edwards  |  www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com 

110 S. Madison St.  Spokane, WA

Brokerage - Development - Property Management	 	 	 	 	 	  	 	 	                       tel: 509-939-8828   |  k.edwards@me.com

Property Information


SALE PRICE:……………………………	 $1,000,000.

BLDG. SIZE:.........................................	 70,723 SqFt. above grade area.

	 	 	 	 	 	 18,771 SqFt. basement area.

LOT SIZE:………………………………..	 19,134 SqFt. +/-

YEAR BUILT:…………………………….	 1911.

ZONING:……….………………………..	 Downtown General by City of Spokane.

CREDITS :………………………………	 Local & Historical Tax Credits Available.

PARCEL #s:……………………………..	 35192.1204 & 35192.1210

OTHER:.................................................	 Please contact listing agent for showing	
	 	 	 	 	 	 and other information about property.

All information herein is furnished by the owner and believed to be complete and correct. The Agent, however, cannot be responsible for changes, errors, omissions or withdrawals of this offering without notice. The above information is from 
sources deemed reliable but should be verified by parties that could be adversely affected by any statements or information. This is not an offering of sub-agency, with commission splits to be determined.

071

http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com
http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com


110 S. Madison St.  Spokane, WA

Brokerage - Development - Property Management	 	 	 	 	 	  	 	 	                       tel: 509-939-8828   |  k.edwards@me.com

GOVERNMENTAL INCENTIVES 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	                                                   |  www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com 

GRANTS & INCENTIVES:


	 The Multi-Family Tax Exemption (MFTE): offers a partial tax exemption for new improvements that create multi-family housing that 	
	 targets at least 20% of the units for low to moderate income households. 


Community Empowerment Zone (CEZ): program is designed to stimulate economic development by offering special tax incentives 	
	 to qualified businesses in order to create new businesses and employment opportunities for low-income populations. Programs 	
	 include: 


	 •	 Sales and Use tax deferrals and exemptions	 	 •	 B & O Training Tax Credits


	 •	 B & O New Job Tax Credits 	 	 	 	 •	 B & O International Business Tax Credits 

Historic District Zone: is a Federal income tax credit may be granted to commercial 
properties that are listed on the National Register of Historic Places, and on which 
“substantial rehabilitation” is performed. Federal income tax credits are available for 
buildings on the National Register of Historic Places. A dollar-for-dollar federal 
income tax credit equal to 20% of the construction costs is available for income-
producing buildings; the credit may be used by the building owner or “sold” to a tax 
credit investor. 


	 	 Façade easements on historic buildings are accepted by the City of Spokane at no 
fee to the property owner. The city will accept an easement on the value of the 
façade of a building. The owner can claim a one-time, charitable, federal income tax 
deduction equal to the appraised value of the preservation easement. A preservation 
easement is a legal agreement that assigns the rights to review and approve 
alterations to the city for the purpose of preserving the property.

Building Size 

Building Area		 	 Gross Size

1st Floor - Main Level	       15,395 SF

2nd Floor 	 	 	       13,832 SF

3rd Floor 	 	 	       13,832 SF

4th Floor 	 	 	       13,832 SF

5th Floor 	 	 	       13,832 SF


Basement - Lower Level	       18,771 SF	 	 	

072

http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com
http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com


110 S. Madison St.  Spokane, WA 

Brokerage - Development - Property Management	 	 	 	 	 	  	 	 	                       tel: 509-939-8828   |  k.edwards@me.com

PLAT MAP   	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	                                                   |  www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com 

073

http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com
http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com


110 S. Madison St.  Spokane, WA 

Brokerage - Development - Property Management	 	 	 	 	 	  	 	 	                       tel: 509-939-8828   |  k.edwards@me.com

AERIAL   	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	                                                   |  www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com 

SITE

074

http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com
http://www.HawkinsEdwardsInc.com

	01 June 23 2022 Agenda
	02 Draft May 26 2022 Historic Preservation Meeting Minutes
	03 AB May 26 Follow Up
	03 EXH 1 Prior Mukilteo Bylaws_Original (1)
	03 EXH 2 Adopted Historic Comm by-laws Updated April 28 2022
	03 EXH 3 DAHP Example Spokane



